
316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com 

November 30, 2020 

Finance Committee 
c/o Visit Pensacola, Inc. 
1401 E. Gregory Street 
Pensacola, Florida 32502 

We have audited the financial statements of Visit Pensacola, Inc. (the “Organization”) for the year 
ended September 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2020.  
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under, generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated 
August 18, 2020. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. As described in Note 1, the Organization changed accounting policies related to 
Revenue Recognition, Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities by adopting FASB Accounting 
Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and related 
amendments (ASC 606), in fiscal year 2020. There was no beginning balance effect on the financial 
statements as the adoption of ASC 606 did not result in a change of timing of the Organization’s 
revenue recognition. The Organization also changed its accounting policies related to accounting 
for contributions by adopting FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit
Entities: Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and 
Contributions Made” in fiscal year 2020. Accordingly, the accounting change has been 
retrospectively applied to prior periods presented as if the policy had always been used. There was 
no impact to net assets as a result of this adoption. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users.  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  There were no such misstatements. 

Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 30, 2020. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our retention.  

We have issued a “Management Letter” to the finance committee and board of directors which 
contains items for consideration with respect to financial and accounting matters noted during the 
audit. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee, Board of Directors and 
management of the Organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Warren Averett, LLC 
Pensacola, Florida
W A tt LLC



VISIT PENSACOLA, INC. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019 



VISIT PENSACOLA, INC. 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 Statements of Financial Position 2 

 Statements of Activities 3 

Statements of Functional Expenses 4 

 Statements of Cash Flows 6 

 Notes to the Financial Statements 7 



316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Pensacola, FL 32502
warrenaverett.com 

1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Finance Committee and Board of Directors 
Visit Pensacola, Inc. 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Visit Pensacola, Inc., [a 501(c)(6) 
nonprofit corporation], (hereinafter referred to as “VPI”), which comprise the statements of financial 
position as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional 
expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of VPI as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.

Pensacola, Florida 
November 30, 2020 
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2020 2019

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,387,865$     270,970$        
Accounts receivable 388,891          1,399,448       
Inventories 599                 1,717              
Prepaid expenses 102,880          114,385          

Total current assets 1,880,235       1,786,520       

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Equipment, net 3,455              4,606              

TOTAL ASSETS 1,883,690$     1,791,126$     

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 639,456$        530,403$        
Accrued payroll and expenses 57,762            66,170            
Unearned revenue 66,700            40,635            

Total current liabilities 763,918          637,208          

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 1,119,772       1,153,918       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,883,690$     1,791,126$     

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS
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2020 2019

SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Tourism development revenue 6,332,634$  8,746,795$
Partnership dues and membership income 98,429         94,244         
Advertising income 8,002           91,883         
In-kind income 161,274       165,577       
Grant income -                  190,477       
Event income 14,135         18,110         
Merchandise sales 1,931           15,026         
Miscellaneous income 12,212         7,568           

Total support and revenue without donor restrictions 6,628,617    9,329,680    

OPERATING EXPENSES
Program expenses

Tourism development 6,008,054    8,660,493    
Supporting expenses

Management and general 654,709       481,319       

Total operating expenses 6,662,763    9,141,812    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (34,146)        187,868       

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS, 

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,153,918    966,050       

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS, 
END OF YEAR 1,119,772$  1,153,918$
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Program 
Services

Supporting 
Services

Management
Tourism & General Total

Advertising 2,191,353    -                2,191,353
Advertising agency fees 180,000       -                180,000
Bad debt expense (recovery) -               80                 80               
Bank and credit card fees -               4,544            4,544          
Brochures and collateral 24,187         -                24,187
Depreciation 798              353               1,151          
Dues and subscriptions 32,348         -                32,348
Equipment and building repair 90,118         39,574          129,692
Festivals and events 430,283       -                430,283
Information technology 26,677         11,800          38,477
In-kind rent 89,990         40,097          130,087
Insurance 17,455         7,722            25,177
Marketing research 432,395       -                432,395
Miscellaneous expense -               536               536             
Office supplies 28,511         9,149            37,660
Partnership expense 62,797         3,031            65,828
Personnel expense 798,179       355,392        1,153,571
Postage 19,203         8,495            27,698
Production 345,732       -                345,732
Professional services -               35,140          35,140
Promotions 83,494         -                83,494
Public relations 73,102         -                73,102
Registration 32,176         -                32,176
Sales tax -               1,275            1,275          
Subrecipient expense - ACE 420,400       -                420,400
Subrecipient expense - PSA 558,881       117,952        676,833
Travel, meals and entertainment 38,031         5,438            43,469
Utilities 31,944         14,131          46,075

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,008,054$  654,709$      6,662,763$

2020
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Program
Services

Supporting 
Services

Management
Tourism & General Total

Advertising 2,685,747$ -$                  2,685,747$
Advertising agency fees 180,564      -                    180,564      
Bad debt expense (recovery) -                  (9,494)           (9,494)         
Bank and credit card fees -                  7,864            7,864          
Brochures and collateral 122,381      -                    122,381      
Depreciation 898             254               1,152          
Dues and subscriptions 35,193        -                    35,193        
Equipment and building repair 78,553        22,195          100,748      
Festivals and events 695,254      -                    695,254      
Information technology 33,842        9,561            43,403        
In-kind rent 101,430      28,658          130,088      
Insurance 17,707        5,003            22,710        
Marketing research 534,315      -                    534,315      
Miscellaneous expense -                  245               245             
Office supplies 29,272        14,291          43,563        
Partnership expense 105,516      1,973            107,489      
Personnel expense 896,756      270,742        1,167,498   
Postage 31,044        8,772            39,816        
Production 588,317      -                    588,317      
Professional services -                  30,162          30,162        
Promotions 74,359        -                    74,359        
Public relations 40,912        -                    40,912        
Registration 79,191        -                    79,191        
Sales tax -                  2,276            2,276          
Subrecipient expense - ACE 1,394,161   -                    1,394,161   
Subrecipient expense - PSA 799,773      74,760          874,533      
Travel, meals and entertainment 92,868        2,066            94,934        
Utilities 42,440        11,991          54,431        

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 8,660,493$ 481,319$      9,141,812$

2019
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2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets (34,146)$         187,868$        
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
 provided by (used in) operating activities:

Bad debt expense (recovery) 80                   (9,494)             
Depreciation 1,151              1,152              
Decrease (increase) in:   

Accounts receivable 1,010,477       (1,115,218)      
Inventories 1,118              1,851              
Prepaid expenses 11,505            89,711            

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 109,053          98,050            
Accrued payroll and expenses (8,408)             357                 
Unearned revenue 26,065            18,248            

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,116,895       (727,475)         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 1,116,895       (727,475)         
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 270,970          998,445          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 1,387,865$     270,970$        
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1. DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

Description of Organization 
Visit Pensacola, Inc. (“VPI”) was formed in 2013, as a Florida not-for-profit corporation to promote 
the common business interests of Escambia County, Florida’s tourism industry and to unify the 
private sector, visitor, tourism, meeting and convention interests of the various incorporated and 
unincorporated areas of Escambia County, in order to speak with a collective, focused voice of 
authority on issues that affect the tourism industry. 

Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
The financial statements of VPI have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US 
GAAP”) which requires that VPI report information regarding its financial position and activities 
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets and 
changes in net assets therein are classified as follows: 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for general use and are not subject to 
donor restrictions.  

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some 
donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature that may or will be met either by passage of 
time or the events specified by the donor.  Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, 
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity.  VPI did not have any net 
assets at September 30, 2020 and 2019, where the donor imposed restrictions.   

Use of Estimates 
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in 
accordance with GAAP. These estimates and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and the note disclosures. Actual results could vary from these estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, if applicable, VPI considers highly-liquid debt 
instruments purchased within three months of maturity to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable are reported at unpaid balances less an allowance for doubtful accounts, if 
applicable. Management evaluates the status of unpaid accounts and adjusts the allowance as 
necessary through a provision for bad debt expense. No provision for uncollectible accounts had 
been established as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, as accounts receivable are considered to be 
fully collectible. 
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1. DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES – CONTINUED

Revenue Recognition
Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is 
limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Under accounting standards, earned revenue measurement 
is driven via a principles based process that requires the entity: 1) identify the contract with the 
customer; 2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3) determine the transaction price; 
4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and 5) recognize revenue when (or 
as) performance obligations are satisfied. Contributed support follows different standards. A 
summary of each of the revenue and support flows are as follows: 

The primary source of revenue is a portion of the local option tourist development tax imposed and 
collected on short-term lodging by the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners (“the 
County”). In accordance with the agreement with the County, VPI receives funding on a 
reimbursement basis from the County as expenditures are incurred in carrying out its mission. 

Gifts and grants, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues as either 
without or with donor restrictions in the period verifiably committed by the donor. Gifts and grants of 
assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. Unconditional promises to give 
that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows using a risk adjusted discount rate depending on the time period involved. 
Amortization of the discount is included in gift and grant revenue in accordance with the donor-
imposed restrictions, if any, on the gifts or grants. Gifts or grants with donor-imposed restrictions 
that can be met through the passage of time or upon the incurring of expenses consistent with the 
purposes are recorded as net assets with restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions when such time or purposes restriction has been satisfied.  

Gifts of property and equipment are recorded as without donor restrictions, unless the donor 
explicitly states how such assets should be used. Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to 
acquire long lived assets are reported as net assets with donor restrictions. VPI reports expirations 
of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long lived asset is placed into service.  

Conditional contributions are recorded as revenue when such amounts become unconditional, 
which generally involves the overcoming of a barrier to entitlement. This can include items like 
meeting a matching provision, incurring specified allowable expenses in accordance with a 
framework of allowable costs or other barriers. Contributions received pending designation by the 
donor are considered to be net assets with donor restrictions until donor stipulations are clarified at 
which time such are reclassified, if required.  

Partnership dues represent revenues from businesses with interests in Escambia County that wish 
to support VPI’s efforts to promote tourism within Escambia County. Partnership dues are 
recognized ratably on a monthly basis over the partnership period as the performance obligations 
are satisfied. Management believes that recognizing revenue over time is the best measure of 
services rendered based on the length of the partnership. Management does not consider there to 
be significant judgment involved in the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations as those are 
directly linked to the length of the partnership.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES – CONTINUED

Inventories
Inventories consist primarily of souvenirs and promotional goods, including maps, brochures and 
postcards and are valued at estimated cost. 

Equipment
VPI capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $1,000 for equipment at cost. Repairs and 
maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is provided over the estimated 
useful lives of the respective assets on a straight-line basis. Equipment is depreciated over five to 
seven years. 

Donated Assets and Use of Facilities 
Donated equipment and other noncash donations are valued at estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. VPI uses certain equipment which was acquired and paid for by Escambia County. Title 
vests with the County and such assets are not recorded as assets of VPI.  The County does not 
charge VPI for the use of the equipment.  The estimated fair market value of the use of these 
assets is recorded as in-kind income and related equipment and building repairs in the statements 
of functional expenses. Effective July 2020, VPI occupies space at the Pensacola Visitor 
Information Center under a lease agreement with the City of Pensacola for $10 annually. The lease 
term is 15 years unless otherwise terminated pursuant to the agreement. The estimated fair value 
of the use of these facilities are recorded as in-kind income and rent expense in the statements of 
functional expenses. 

Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue consists of partnership dues and advertising income, which were received in 
advance. The revenue will be recognized over the terms of the partnerships or once the 
advertisement occurs. 

Compensated Absences 
The liability for compensated absences of $29,271 and $34,841 as of September 30, 2020 and 
2019, respectively, is included in accrued payroll and expenses. This represents amounts owed to 
employees under VPI’s paid time off policy.  

Functional Allocation of Expenses  
The costs of providing the program and supporting activities of VPI have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statement of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated by 
management among the program and supporting activities based on time and effort or occupancy 
costs. 

Advertising
The primary purpose of VPI is to promote and advertise the local community.  As such, all program 
expenses are considered to be either direct or indirect forms of “advertising.” Such costs are 
expensed as incurred.   
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1. DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES – CONTINUED 

Income Taxes 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined VPI to be exempt from federal income tax under 
Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code. VPI is subject to taxation only on income from any 
business unrelated to its exempt purposes. VPI is not aware of any uncertain tax positions that 
would require disclosure or accrual in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   

New Accounting Pronouncements 
Effective October 1, 2019, VPI adopted ASU-2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(Topic 606),” which amends existing revenue recognition standards and establishes a new Accounting 
Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 606. The core principle of this amendment is that an entity 
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an 
amount that reflects consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for these 
goods or services. VPI concluded that all of its contracts with customers consist of a single 
performance obligation to transfer promised services and are, therefore, not impacted by the adoption 
of ASC 606.  

Effective October 1, 2019, VPI adopted the ASU-No. 2018-08, “Not-for-Profit Entities: Clarifying the 
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.” ASU No. 
2018-08 requires that unconditional contributions (those that do not include a measurable 
performance-related or other barrier, or those in which VPI has limited discretion over how the 
contribution should be spent) are recognized as revenues in the period received and are reported as 
increases in the appropriate categories of net assets in accordance with donor restrictions. Expirations 
of donor-imposed restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or 
the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as net assets released from restrictions. 
Contributions that include a measurable barrier or those for which VPI has limited discretion over how 
the contributions should be spent are recorded as conditional contributions. Conditional contributions 
are not recognized until they have become unconditional; that is, when the conditions surrounding the 
indications of the barrier have been met. The adoption of ASU No. 2018-08 did not have an impact on 
the financial statements. 

Subsequent Events
VPI has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between September 30, 2020 and 
November 30, 2020, which is the date that financial statements were available to be issued, for 
possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.  
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2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable at September 30, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following: 

2020 2019

Tourism development tax receivable 379,852$        1,383,168$     
Partnership dues 3,070              2,860              
Other 5,969 13,420            

Accounts receivable 388,891$        1,399,448$     

3. LINE OF CREDIT 

VPI has a revolving line of credit with Regions Bank in the amount of $500,000. The interest rate is 
LIBOR plus 0.50%. The line of credit matures on October 15, 2021, and is secured by inventory, 
accounts, equipment, general intangibles and fixtures. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, there was 
no outstanding balance on the line of credit. 

4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

VPI regularly monitors liquidity to meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments.  VPI 
has various sources of liquidity at its disposal including cash, receivables, and line of credit.  For 
purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, 
VPI considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of its mission, as well as the conduct 
of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.  

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the following table shows the total financial assets held by VPI 
and the amounts of those financial assets available within one year of the date of the statement of 
financial position to meet general expenditures.   

2020 2019

Financial assets at year end:
Cash 1,387,865$     270,970$        
Accounts receivable 388,891          1,399,448

Total financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next 12 months 1,776,756$     1,670,418$     
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5. CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK 

VPI’s activities are primarily funded by a discretionary appropriation of the Escambia County local 
option tourist development tax. VPI’s ability to continue to operate at current levels is dependent on 
continued funding from this source.   

VPI maintains cash balances at a financial institution, which at times, may exceed federally insured 
limits. The balances held with the financial institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to $250,000. VPI’s cash balances before outstanding checks exceeded federally 
insured limits by $1,196,276 and $46,637 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. VPI has 
not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk.

6. SUBRECIPIENT EXPENSE 

VPI is the fiscal agent for ACE and Pensacola Sports Association, Inc. (PSA). In accordance with 
the Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements between the County and VPI (the Agreement), VPI 
accepts tourism development revenue from the County on behalf of PSA and ACE. As fiscal agent 
for ACE and PSA, VPI is responsible for administering the funding and ensuring it is spent in 
accordance with the Agreement.  

In accordance with GAAP, this arrangement does not meet the criteria of being an agency 
transaction; therefore, the expenses incurred by each entity and reimbursed by VPI are recorded as 
subrecipient expense in the statements of functional expenses.  

Subrecipient expenses for the year ended September 30, 2020, consisted of the following: 

ACE PSA Total

Direct programming expense 420,400$        292,234$        712,634$        
Operations expense -                      67,067            67,067            
Personnel expense -                      317,532          317,532          

Total subrecipient expense 420,400$        676,833$        1,097,233$     

Subrecipient expenses for the year ended September 30, 2019, consisted of the following: 

ACE PSA Total

Direct programming expense 1,394,161$     535,181$        1,929,342$     
Operations expense -                      64,352            64,352            
Personnel expense -                      275,000          275,000          

Total subrecipient expense 1,394,161$     874,533$        2,268,694$     
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

VPI enters into certain promotional partnership and marketing transactions with organizations that 
may be affiliated with members of VPI’s Board of Directors. These transactions are conducted at 
arms-length and are in the normal course of business. 

8. RETIREMENT PLAN  

VPI administers a 401(k) plan for the benefit of its employees. All employees are eligible to 
participate if they have completed one year of service and are at least 21 years of age. The plan 
provides for a safe harbor matching employer contribution equal to 100% of salary deferrals that do 
not exceed 5% of compensation for each payroll period. Effective October 1, 2019, the limit was 
increased to 6% of compensation for each payroll period. The matching contributions totaled 
$22,653 and $23,902 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

9. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

Novel Coronavirus: 
The outbreak of the novel coronavirus has adversely impacted global commercial activity and 
contributed to significant declines and volatility in financial markets. The coronavirus pandemic and 
government responses are creating disruption in global supply chains and adversely impacting 
many industries. The outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic and 
market conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown. The rapid development and 
fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as to the ultimate material adverse impact of the 
novel coronavirus. Nevertheless, the novel coronavirus presents material uncertainty and risk with 
respect to VPI, its performance and its financial results. 

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On August 27, 2020, VPI entered into a CARES Act Funding Program Agreement (the CARES 
Agreement) with the County. Under the CARES Agreement, the County has agreed to reimburse 
VPI up to $500,000 for CARES Act eligible expenses incurred through December 30, 2020. As of 
November 30, 2020, no funds have been received by VPI under the CARES Agreement.  
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County Submissions

All submissions to the County are current with no denials to date.  We received the CARES payment 12.9.2020.  

Direct Programming Totaled $904K
Operations totaled $82K
Personnel total $258K

UNIFIED Year to Date total Expense = $1,244K
UNIFIED Year to Date Net Income (loss) =($54K)

UNIFIED Year to Date TDT revenue totaled $636K.  CARES revenue Totaled $500K

UNIFIED Year to date expense:
UNIFIED Year to date total Revenue = $1,190K

Personnel total $99K

Direct Programming Totaled $161K
Operations totaled $24K 

VISIT PENSACOLA ONLY Month to Date total Expense = $284K
VISIT PENSACOLA Only Month to Date Net Income (loss) = $76K

UNIFIED Year To Date Private revenue totaled $55K

VISIT PENSACOLA ONLY Month to date total Revenue = $360K 
VISIT PENSACOLA ONLY Month to date expense:

FY21  DECEMBER TAKEAWAYS:

DECMEBER 2020 as compared to December 2019 MTD both show positive net incomes.  Albeit FY20 shows a larger amount due to being able to bill for 
larger expenses of Showcase in FY20.  Overall in FY21 we have 45% of the expenses as in FY20.  This is due to budget cuts, no events, etc.  FY21 = 113 
paid memberships, while FY20 had 143.  The difference of $8K YTD.  CARES was received in FY21 and not in FY20, for a difference of $500K.  However, 

due to the lack of projects, events etc. expenses overall are $310K lower YTD in FY21 as compared to this time last year.  

FY21 TDT Unified budget is $5,997K as compared to FY20 of $6,874K a decrease of $877K overall.  This will effect year over year statement comparisons.  
Even with the $500K in CARES seen in FY21 overall income is lagging $161K from FY20 YTD.  The majority of this is due to the lack of income seen from 

TDT.  

MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS:

FY21 VPI recognized CARES funding from the County under a separate agreement from the Unified Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement.  CARES 
funding was received 12.9.2020.  Expenses are lower in FY21 by $297K again due to budget being lower, no events, etc.  VPI was able to bill for 2 months of 

Showcase in Dec FY21 as all backup was received.  Some large vendors were unable to be billed due to not having cleared the bank.  VPI will continue to 
see the difference in annual dues, agreements that were paid in full in the previous year, yet expensed monthly as per accounting practices.   

VPI has 30 fewer paid memberships as of 12.31.20 than 12.31.19.  This accounts for the $8K difference in dues between the two years. 

VP MTD TDT INCOME is from billing 2 months of Showcase invoices.   

VP MTD PRIVATE INCOME is from memberships dues.  All memberships start on October 1, with dues having an influx at the beginning of the 
fiscal year. This is front loaded in the year.  Currently there is $36K outstanding in membership dues

VP MONTH TO DATE NET INCOME is from billing previous months expenses in one month.  

VISIT PENSACOLA ONLY Month To Date Private revenue totaled $9K.  

VISIT PENSACOLA ONLY Month to Date TDT revenue totaled $351K (We recognize income as billed to the County).  

  PSA is current on their submissions.  They have received $100K of the $100K advance in $25K installments as per their FY21 agreement.  

ACE had no submission for FY21 year to date.  This is typical for ACE.  Their submissions usually do not start until Spring.



VISIT PENSACOLA BALANCE SHEET

Dec 31, 20 NOTES
ASSETS

Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1025 · EFT TDT #4196 738,809.07 Electronic funds from Cty
1010 · TDT Op #2290 207,379.10 TDT Operating account
1030 · Partner#2177 339,140.28 Private funds Operating account
1035 · Reserves #3955 787,011.50 Private funds Interest bearing account
1050 · Petty Cash 115.00 Petty Cash only at Pcola VIC

Total Checking/Savings 2,072,454.95
Accounts Receivable

1200 · Accounts Receivable
1200-99 · PSA  Advance 21,169.28 Remaining on 4 advances of $100K total
1200-3 · HRT Receivable 60.00 FY20 Accruals owed for events in FY20
1200-4 · Tourism Receivables 542,683.41 November and December submission 
1200-5 · Membership Receivable 3,070.00 FY20 Accruals for membership dues owed

Total 1200 · Accounts Receivable 566,982.69
Total Accounts Receivable 566,982.69
Other Current Assets

1500 · Gift Cards 1,150.00 From Partners to be used for guests/FAMS etc.

1405 · Prepaid Misc. 86,206.46

Sprout Social, US Travel, Arrivalist, Simpleview, 
VisitApps, Visa Vue, CrowdRiff, STR, Destinations 
International, VR Market Data, DMO Partnership, Adara, 
Destinations Florida, Monsido

1410 · Prepaid Insurance 19,580.55 Flood, Wind, Property, D&O

1999 · Merchandise Inventory 599.16 month end counts and adjustments, phased out inventory 
and consignment. This is remaining Post Cards

1400 · Prepaid Postage 4,812.74 Balance on account at Post Office and Pitney Bowes
Total Other Current Assets 112,348.91

Total Current Assets 2,751,786.55
Fixed Assets

1350 · Equipment
1361 · iMac Pro 5,757.91 Owned by VPI, purchased late Sept.2018
1998 · Acc Depr - Equipment -4,844.16
1359 · Apple laptop 1,449.00 fully depreciated
1352 · Flag & Flagpole 683.00 fully depreciated
1351 · Laminator & case 409.00 fully depreciated

Total 1350 · Equipment 3,454.75
Total Fixed Assets 3,454.75

TOTAL ASSETS 2,755,241.30
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2100 · Accounts Payable 69,115.81 PSA and Fisher Brown Insurance

Total Accounts Payable 69,115.81
Credit Cards

2000 · Visit Pensacola P-Card 11,475.06 Current month Pcards TDT
2002 · Regions Membership PCard 2,146.56 Current month Pcards Membership

Total Credit Cards 13,621.62
Other Current Liabilities

2700 · Unearned Revenue 1,577,500.00
$1.5M advance from County, along with unearned insider 
guide ad sales. Ad Sale revenue will be released when 
the guide goes to print

2999 · Salaries payable 29,271.22 FY20 accrual of PTO

25500 · Sales Tax Payable 22.50 Sales tax owed for current month paid mid following 
month

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,606,793.72
Total Current Liabilities 1,689,531.15

Total Liabilities 1,689,531.15
Equity

32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 1,119,773.41 FY14 to FY20 Net Income
Net Income -54,063.26 Current month net income -loss

Total Equity 1,065,710.15
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,755,241.30
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UNIFIED 
PROFIT LOSS BUDGET PERFORMANCE ALL FUNDING SOURCES FORM D

Dec 20 Oct - Dec 20 Annual 
Budget

Remaining of 
Budget

% Remaining of 
Budget NOTES

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4000 · Tourism Development Tax-TDT 385,498.36 635,627.81 5,997,307.00 5,361,679.19 89% As billed to Cty.  Only 2 checks 
not cleared

4050 · TDT Supplemental 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0!
4060 · CARES ACT 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 paid by County

4100 · Membership Dues 9,032.00 53,219.50 101,205.00 0.00 0%

Membership dues owed on 
10.01.xx front loaded in year. 
Working on outstanding $45K 
owed

4150 · Advertising Income 0.00 0.00 102,000.00 47,985.50 47% insider guide advertising should 
be released next month

4300 · Consignment Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 102,000.00 100%
4400 · Gifts in Kind - Goods 0.00 0.00 164,000.00 0.00 #DIV/0!
4500 · Grant Income 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 164,000.00 100%
4600 · Misc. Income 7.94 51.20 600.00 50,000.00 100%

4640 · Event Income 300.00 1,520.00 10,000.00 548.80 91% HRT. Did not charge for annual 
meeting this year

Total Income 394,838.30 1,190,418.51 6,925,112.00 5,726,213.49 57262%
Gross Profit 394,838.30 1,190,418.51 6,925,112.00 5,734,693.49 83%

Expense
1 · Direct Programming

5090 · Marketing Research 19,602.50 46,224.17 482,502.00 436,277.83 90%
Downs St. Germain, monthly 
Adara, STR, Visa Vue, VR 
Market Data

5100 · Advertising/Media 1,620.00 4,860.00 121,500.00 116,640.00 96%
5110 · Public Relations 5,335.99 20,107.97 88,200.00 68,092.03 77% Giant Noise, Sprout
5120 · Advertising Production 652.67 1,019.03 6,000.00 4,980.97 83%
5130 · Internet Site Production 27,883.80 78,507.92 230,219.00 151,711.08 66% Simpleview 
5140 · Festivals & Events Granted 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0!
5141 · Festivals & Event Local Support 175.00 175.00 281,821.00 281,646.00 100% Summerfest
5142 · Festival & Event Mini Grants 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 100%
5150 · Consumer Promotions 0.00 0.00 37,000.00 37,000.00 100%
5160 · Sales Promotions 0.00 0.00 48,900.00 48,900.00 100%
5170 · Brochures and Collateral 0.00 0.00 130,320.00 130,320.00 100%
5180 · Film Promotions 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 100%
5190 · Showcase

5195 · Showcase CARES 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 0% paid by County
5190 · Showcase - Other 103,353.10 230,518.36 1,650,080.00 1,419,561.64 86% invoices are current

Total 5190 · Showcase 103,353.10 730,518.36 2,150,080.00 1,419,561.64 66%
5210 · Regional Partnership 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 100%
5215 · Tourism Development Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0!
5220 · Registration 0.00 922.24 37,465.00 36,542.76 98%
5230 · Dues and Subscriptions 1,636.90 4,633.40 38,662.00 34,028.60 88%
5400 · Business Travel & Entertainment 0.00 #DIV/0!

5400-1 · Disallowed Travel Expense 0.00 80.50 3,794.00 3,713.50 98%
5400-2 · Travel Advance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0!
5400 · Business Travel & Entertainment  23.60 659.82 56,826.00 56,166.18 99%

Total 5400 · Business Travel & Entertainm 23.60 740.32 60,620.00 59,879.68 99%
5540 · Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 100%
5500 · Visitor Awareness  Education 705.66 6,230.38 76,550.00 70,319.62 92%

7000 · PSA Sporting Events 10,188.15 10,432.21 299,565.00 289,132.79 97% as submitted by PSA.  3 months. 

7400 · ACE - DP 0.00 0.00 944,576.00 944,576.00 100%
Total 1 · Direct Programming 171,177.37 904,371.00 5,139,480.00 4,235,109.00 82%
2 · Operating Costs

5520 · Committee Expenses 283.00 283.00 8,048.00 7,765.00 96%
5450 · Auto/ Local Travel 383.83 595.21 10,000.00 9,404.79 94%
5600 · Building Maintenance & Repair 9,379.66 19,922.53 78,357.00 58,434.47 75% new deck
5610 · Computer&IT Maintenance&Repai 1,999.28 5,790.63 30,347.00 24,556.37 81%
5630 · Insurance Building & Content 1,555.05 4,665.33 19,600.00 14,934.67 76%
5640 · D & O and Liability Insurance 451.96 1,355.88 6,000.00 4,644.12 77%
5650 · Audit 0.00 12,000.00 14,000.00 2,000.00 14%
5660 · Legal Services 2,875.00 2,875.00 16,500.00 13,625.00 83% missing December invoice
5670 · CPA/ Financial Services 0.00 400.00 3,520.00 3,120.00 89%
5690 · Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 100%
5700 · Postage 130.69 1,494.74 40,135.00 38,640.26 96%
5710 · Supplies Coffee/Sodas 98.84 1,667.05 8,200.00 6,532.95 80%
5720 · Office Supplies 372.38 791.79 13,740.00 12,948.21 94%
5730 · Storage and Delivery 757.48 2,079.64 14,834.00 12,754.36 86%
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UNIFIED 
PROFIT LOSS BUDGET PERFORMANCE ALL FUNDING SOURCES FORM D

Dec 20 Oct - Dec 20 Annual 
Budget

Remaining of 
Budget

% Remaining of 
Budget NOTES

5750 · Rent 0.00 0.00 10.00 10.00 100%
5760 · Telephone Service 987.83 2,984.08 7,200.00 4,215.92 59%
5770 · Utilities 2,610.44 8,013.01 33,362.00 25,348.99 76%
5780 · Copier 465.43 1,681.17 9,004.00 7,322.83 81%
5790 · Capital Expenditures 0.00 0.00 23,000.00 23,000.00 100%
5900 · Miscellaneous Expenses 1,587.24 1,603.24 600.00 -1,003.24 -167% needing staff reports
5920 · Bad Debt Expense 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 100%
6000 · Consignment Sales Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0!
6001 · Bank Service Charge 40.00 660.00 660.00 0.00 0%
6010 · Credit Card Processing Fee 251.06 761.29 4,464.00 3,702.71 83%
6500 · Taxes 22.50 84.75 2,014.00 1,929.25 96%
6940 · In Kind Expense 0.00 0.00 164,000.00 164,000.00 100%
7001 · PSA Operations 4,289.20 11,810.18 49,928.00 38,117.82 76%

Total 2 · Operating Costs 28,540.87 81,518.52 559,123.00 477,604.48 85%
3 · Personnel Costs

5800 · Salaries 80,133.05 159,685.63 761,076.00 601,390.37 79%
5810 · Commissions 750.25 4,402.75 21,000.00 16,597.25 79%
5830 · Auto 692.31 1,417.59 6,000.00 4,582.41 76%
5840 · 401K Contribution Match 2,179.91 4,603.30 43,254.00 38,650.70 89%
5850 · Employee Insurance 7,552.60 15,327.16 97,740.00 82,412.84 84%
5870 · Drug Testing 0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 100%
5880 · Payroll Expense 8,137.29 16,567.49 86,532.00 69,964.51 81%
5890 · Staff Education 0.00 0.00 5,049.00 5,049.00 100%
7002 · PSA Personnel 20,054.35 56,588.33 205,258.00 148,669.67 72%

Total 3 · Personnel Costs 119,499.76 258,592.25 1,226,509.00 967,916.75 79%
Total Expense 319,218.00 1,244,481.77 6,925,112.00 5,680,630.23 82%

Net Ordinary Income 75,620.30 -54,063.26 0.00

Net Income 75,620.30 -54,063.26 0.00

Billed 2 months of Showcase in 
this month.  Outstanding large 
vendors and one payroll (3 
payrolls this month not cleared 
the bank
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1 SBA Form 2483 (1/21) 

Paycheck Protection Program 
Borrower Application Form Revised January 8, 2021 

OMB Control No.: 3245-0407  
Expiration Date: 7/31/2021 

Check One: DBA or Tradename (if 
applicable) 

Year of Establishment (if 
applicable) 

Business Legal Name NAICS Code 
Applicant (including affiliates, 

if applicable) Meets Size 
Standard (check one): 

 No more than 500 employees
(or 300 employees, if applicable)
 SBA industry size standards
 SBA alternative size standard

Business Address (Street, City, State, Zip Code - No P.O. Box addresses 
allowed) 

Business TIN (EIN, SSN) Business Phone 

Primary Contact Email Address 

Average Monthly 
Payroll: $ 

x 2.5 + EIDL (Do Not Include 
Any EIDL Advance) equals 
Loan Request Amount: 

$ 
Number of 
Employees: 

Purpose of the 
loan (select all 
that apply): 

☐ Payroll Costs ☐ Rent / Mortgage Interest ☐ Utilities ☐ Covered Operations
Expenditures

☐ Covered Property
Damage ☐ Covered Supplier Costs ☐ Covered Worker

Protection Expenditures
☐ Other (explain):
______________________

Applicant Ownership 
List all owners of 20% or more of the equity of the Applicant. Attach a separate sheet if necessary. 

Owner Name Title Ownership % TIN (EIN, SSN) Address 

If questions (1), (2), (5), or (6) are answered “Yes,” the loan will not be approved. 

Question Yes No 
1. Is the Applicant or any owner of the Applicant presently suspended, debarred, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency, or presently involved in any
bankruptcy?

2. Has the Applicant, any owner of the Applicant, or any business owned or controlled by any of them, ever obtained a direct or
guaranteed loan from SBA or any other Federal agency that is (a) currently delinquent, or (b) has defaulted in the last 7 years and
caused a loss to the government?

3. Is the Applicant or any owner of the Applicant an owner of any other business, or have common management (including a
management agreement) with any other business? If yes, list all such businesses (including their TINs if available) and describe the
relationship on a separate sheet identified as addendum A.

4. Did the Applicant receive an SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loan between January 31, 2020 and April 3, 2020? If yes, provide
details on a separate sheet identified as addendum B.

5. Is the Applicant (if an individual) or any individual owning 20% or more of the equity of the Applicant presently incarcerated or, for
any felony, presently subject to an indictment, criminal information, arraignment, or other means by which formal criminal charges
are brought in any jurisdiction?
Initial here to confirm your response to question 5 →                        _____________________

6. Within the last 5 years, for any felony involving fraud, bribery, embezzlement, or a false statement in a loan application or an
application for federal financial assistance, or within the last year, for any other felony, has the Applicant (if an individual) or any
owner of the Applicant 1) been convicted; 2) pleaded guilty; 3) pleaded nolo contendere; or 4) commenced any form of parole or
probation (including probation before judgment)?
Initial here to confirm your response to question 6 →                        _____________________

7. Is the United States the principal place of residence for all employees included in the Applicant’s payroll calculation above?
8. Is the Applicant a franchise?
9. Is the franchise listed in the SBA’s Franchise Directory? If yes, enter the SBA Franchise Identifier Code here:  _______________

Sole Proprietor       Partnership      C-Corp      S-Corp      LLC 
Independent Contractor       Self-Employed Individual
501(c)(3) nonprofit       501(c)(6) organization
501(c)(19) veterans organization       Housing cooperative 
Tribal Business       Other



2 SBA Form 2483 (1/21) 

Paycheck Protection Program 
Borrower Application Form Revised January 8, 2021 

By Signing Below, You Make the Following Representations, Authorizations, and Certifications 
I certify that: 

• I have read the statements included in this form, including the Statements Required by Law and Executive Orders, and I understand them.
• The Applicant is eligible to receive a loan under the rules in effect at the time this application is submitted that have been issued by the Small

Business Administration (SBA) and the Department of the Treasury (Treasury) implementing the Paycheck Protection Program under Division A,
Title I of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) and the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits,
and Venues Act (the Paycheck Protection Program Rules).

• The Applicant, together with its affiliates (if applicable), (1) is an independent contractor, self-employed individual, or sole proprietor with no
employees; (2) if not a housing cooperative, eligible 501(c)(6) organization, or eligible destination marketing organization, employs no more than
the greater of 500 employees or, if applicable, the size standard in number of employees established by SBA in 13 C.F.R. 121.201 for the Applicant’s 
industry; (3) if a housing cooperative, eligible 501(c)(6) organization, or eligible destination marketing organization, employs no more than 300
employees; (4) if NAICS 72, employs no more than 500 employees per physical location; (5) if a news organization that is majority owned or
controlled by a NAICS code 511110 or 5151 business or a nonprofit public broadcasting entity with a trade or business under NAICS code 511110
or 5151, employs no more than 500 employees (or, if applicable, the size standard in number of employees established by SBA in 13 C.F.R. 121.201 
for the Applicant’s industry) per location; or (6) is a small business under the applicable revenue-based size standard established by SBA in 13
C.F.R. 121.201 for the Applicant’s industry or under the SBA alternative size standard.

• I will comply, whenever applicable, with the civil rights and other limitations in this form.
• All loan proceeds will be used only for business-related purposes as specified in the loan application and consistent with the Paycheck Protection

Program Rules including the prohibition on using loan proceeds for lobbying activities and expenditures.  If Applicant is a news organization that
became eligible for a loan under Section 317 of the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits, and Venues Act, proceeds of the loan
will be used to support expenses at the component of the business concern that produces or distributes locally focused or emergency information.

• I understand that SBA encourages the purchase, to the extent feasible, of American-made equipment and products.
• The Applicant is not engaged in any activity that is illegal under federal, state or local law.
• Any EIDL loan received by the Applicant (Section 7(b)(2) of the Small Business Act) between January 31, 2020 and April 3, 2020 was for a

purpose other than paying payroll costs and other allowable uses for loans under the Paycheck Protection Program Rules.
For Applicants who are individuals: I authorize the SBA to request criminal record information about me from criminal justice agencies for the purpose of 
determining my eligibility for programs authorized by the Small Business Act, as amended. 
The authorized representative of the Applicant must certify in good faith to all of the below by initialing next to each one: 

The Applicant was in operation on February 15, 2020, has not permanently closed, and was either an eligible self-employed individual, 
independent contractor, or sole proprietorship with no employees, or had employees for whom it paid salaries and payroll taxes or paid independent 
contractors, as reported on Form(s) 1099-MISC.   
Current economic uncertainty makes this loan request necessary to support the ongoing operations of the Applicant. 

  The funds will be used to retain workers and maintain payroll; or make payments for mortgage interest, rent, utilities, covered operations 
expenditures, covered property damage costs, covered supplier costs, and covered worker protection expenditures as specified under the Paycheck 
Protection Program Rules; I understand that if the funds are knowingly used for unauthorized purposes, the federal government may hold me 
legally liable, such as for charges of fraud. 
I understand that loan forgiveness will be provided for the sum of documented payroll costs, covered mortgage interest payments, covered rent 
payments, covered utilities, covered operations expenditures, covered property damage costs, covered supplier costs, and covered worker 
protection expenditures, and not more than 40% of the forgiven amount may be for non-payroll costs. If required, the Applicant will provide to 
the Lender and/or SBA documentation verifying the number of full-time equivalent employees on the Applicant’s payroll as well as the dollar 
amounts of eligible expenses for the covered period following this loan. 
The Applicant has not and will not receive another loan under the Paycheck Protection Program, section 7(a)(36) of the Small Business Act (15 
U.S.C. 636(a)(36)) (this does not include Paycheck Protection Program second draw loans, section 7(a)(37) of the Small Business Act (15 U.S.C. 
636(a)(37)). 
The Applicant has not and will not receive a Shuttered Venue Operator grant from SBA. 

_____ The President, the Vice President, the head of an Executive department, or a Member of Congress, or the spouse of such person as determined 
under applicable common law, does not directly or indirectly hold a controlling interest in the Applicant, with such terms having the meanings 
provided in Section 322 of the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits, and Venues Act. 

_____ The Applicant is not an issuer, the securities of which are listed on an exchange registered as a national securities exchange under section 6 of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78f). 

  I further certify that the information provided in this application and the information provided in all supporting documents and forms is true and 
accurate in all material respects. I understand that knowingly making a false statement to obtain a guaranteed loan from SBA is punishable under 
the law, including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 3571 by imprisonment of not more than five years and/or a fine of up to $250,000; under 15 U.S.C. 
645 by imprisonment of not more than two years and/or a fine of not more than $5,000; and, if submitted to a federally insured institution, under 
18 U.S.C. 1014 by imprisonment of not more than thirty years and/or a fine of not more than $1,000,000. 

  I acknowledge that the Lender will confirm the eligible loan amount using required documents submitted. I understand, acknowledge, and agree 
that the Lender can share any tax information that I have provided with SBA’s authorized representatives, including authorized representatives of 
the SBA Office of Inspector General, for the purpose of compliance with SBA Loan Program Requirements and all SBA reviews. 

_________________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative of Applicant Date 
___________________________________________    ________________________ 
Print Name Title 



3 SBA Form 2483 (1/21) 

Paycheck Protection Program 
Borrower Application Form Revised January 8, 2021 

Purpose of this form: 

This form is to be completed by the authorized representative of the Applicant and submitted to your SBA Participating Lender. Submission of the requested 
information is required to make a determination regarding eligibility for financial assistance. Failure to submit the information would affect that 
determination. 

Instructions for completing this form: 

With respect to “purpose of the loan,” payroll costs consist of compensation to employees (whose principal place of residence is the United States) in the 
form of salary, wages, commissions, or similar compensation; cash tips or the equivalent (based on employer records of past tips or, in the absence of such 
records, a reasonable, good-faith employer estimate of such tips); payment for vacation, parental, family, medical, or sick leave (except those paid leave 
amounts for which a credit is allowed under FFCRA Sections 7001 and 7003); allowance for separation or dismissal; payment for the provision of employee 
benefits (including insurance premiums) consisting of group health care coverage, group life, disability, vision, or dental insurance, and retirement benefits; 
payment of state and local taxes assessed on compensation of employees; and, for an independent contractor or sole proprietor, wage, commissions, income, 
or net earnings from self-employment or similar compensation. 

For purposes of calculating “Average Monthly Payroll,” most Applicants will use the average monthly payroll for 2019 or 2020, excluding costs over 
$100,000 on an annualized basis, as prorated for the period during which the payments are made or the obligation to make the payments is incurred, for 
each employee. For seasonal businesses, the Applicant may elect to instead use average total monthly payroll for any twelve-week period selected by the 
Applicant between February 15, 2019 and February 15, 2020, excluding costs over $100,000 on an annualized basis, as prorated for the period during which 
the payments are made or the obligation to make the payments is incurred, for each employee.  For new businesses, average monthly payroll may be 
calculated using the time period from January 1, 2020 to February 29, 2020, excluding costs over $100,000 on an annualized basis, as prorated for the period 
during which the payments are made or the obligation to make the payments is incurred, for each employee. For farmers and ranchers that operate as a sole 
proprietorship or as an independent contractor, or who are eligible self-employed individuals and report farm income or expenses on a Schedule F (or any 
equivalent successor IRS form), payroll costs are computed using eligible payroll costs for employees, if any, plus the lesser of $100,000 and the difference 
between gross income and any eligible payroll costs for employees, as reported on a Schedule F.  For Applicants that file IRS Form 1040, Schedule C, 
payroll costs are computed using line 31 net profit amount, limited to $100,000, plus any eligible payroll costs for employees. For Applicants that are 
partnerships, payroll costs are computed using net earnings from self-employment of individual general partners, as reported on IRS Form 1065 K-1, reduced 
by section 179 expense deduction claimed, unreimbursed partnership expenses claimed, and depletion claimed on oil and gas properties, multiplied by 
0.9235, that is not more than $100,000, plus any eligible payroll costs for employees. 

For purposes of reporting Number of Employees, sole proprietors, self-employed individuals, and independent contractors should include themselves as 
employees (i.e., the minimum number in the box Number of Employees is one).  

For purposes of reporting Year of Establishment, self-employed individuals and independent contractors may enter “NA”. 

For purposes of reporting NAICS Code, applicants must match the business activity code provided on their IRS income tax filings, if applicable. 

If Applicant is refinancing an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL): Add the outstanding amount of an EIDL made between January 31, 2020 and April 
3, 2020 to Loan Request as indicated on the form. Do not add the amount of any EIDL Advance. 

All parties listed below are considered owners of the Applicant, as well as “principals”: 

• For a sole proprietorship, the sole proprietor;
• For a partnership, all general partners, and all limited partners owning 20% or more of the equity of the firm;
• For a corporation, all owners of 20% or more of the corporation;
• For limited liability companies, all members owning 20% or more of the company; and
• Any Trustor (if the Applicant is owned by a trust).

Paperwork Reduction Act – You are not required to respond to this collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number. 
The estimated time for completing this application, including gathering data needed, is 8 minutes. Comments about this time or the information requested 
should be sent to: Small Business Administration, Director, Records Management Division, 409 3rd St., SW, Washington DC 20416, and/or SBA Desk 
Officer, Office of Management and Budget, New Executive Office Building, Washington DC 20503. PLEASE DO NOT SEND FORMS TO THESE 
ADDRESSES. 

Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. 552a) – Under the provisions of the Privacy Act, you are not required to provide your social security number. Failure to provide your 
social security number may not affect any right, benefit or privilege to which you are entitled. (But see Debt Collection Notice regarding taxpayer 
identification number below.) Disclosures of name and other personal identifiers are required to provide SBA with sufficient information to make a character 
determination. When evaluating character, SBA considers the person’s integrity, candor, and disposition toward criminal actions. Additionally, SBA is 
specifically authorized to verify your criminal history, or lack thereof, pursuant to section 7(a)(1)(B), 15 U.S.C. Section 636(a)(1)(B) of the Small Business 
Act.  

Disclosure of Information – Requests for information about another party may be denied unless SBA has the written permission of the individual to release 
the information to the requestor or unless the information is subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act. The Privacy Act authorizes SBA 
to make certain “routine uses” of information protected by that Act. One such routine use is the disclosure of information maintained in SBA’s system of 
records when this information indicates a violation or potential violation of law, whether civil, criminal, or administrative in nature. Specifically, SBA may 
refer the information to the appropriate agency, whether Federal, State, local or foreign, charged with responsibility for, or otherwise involved in 
investigation, prosecution, enforcement or prevention of such violations. Another routine use is disclosure to other Federal agencies conducting background 
checks but only to the extent the information is relevant to the requesting agencies’ function. See, 74 F.R. 14890 (2009), and as amended from time to time 
for additional background and other routine uses. In addition, the CARES Act, requires SBA to register every loan made under the Paycheck Protection 
Program using the Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) assigned to the borrower.  
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Paycheck Protection Program 
Borrower Application Form Revised January 8, 2021 

Debt Collection Act of 1982, Deficit Reduction Act of 1984 (31 U.S.C. 3701 et seq. and other titles) – SBA must obtain your taxpayer identification 
number when you apply for a loan. If you receive a loan, and do not make payments as they come due, SBA may: (1) report the status of your loan(s) to 
credit bureaus, (2) hire a collection agency to collect your loan, (3) offset your income tax refund or other amounts due to you from the Federal Government, 
(4) suspend or debar you or your company from doing business with the Federal Government, (5) refer your loan to the Department of Justice, or (6) take
other action permitted in the loan instruments.

Right to Financial Privacy Act of 1978 (12 U.S.C. 3401) – The Right to Financial Privacy Act of 1978, grants SBA access rights to financial records held 
by financial institutions that are or have been doing business with you or your business including any financial institutions participating in a loan or loan 
guaranty. SBA is only required provide a certificate of its compliance with the Act to a financial institution in connection with its first request for access to 
your financial records. SBA’s access rights continue for the term of any approved loan guaranty agreement. SBA is also authorized to transfer to another 
Government authority any financial records concerning an approved loan or loan guarantee, as necessary to process, service or foreclose on a loan guaranty 
or collect on a defaulted loan guaranty. 

Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552) – This law provides, with some exceptions, that SBA must supply information reflected in agency files and 
records to a person requesting it. Information about approved loans that is generally released includes, among other things, statistics on our loan programs 
(individual borrowers are not identified in the statistics) and other information such as the names of the borrowers, the amount of the loan, and the type of 
the loan. Proprietary data on a borrower would not routinely be made available to third parties. All requests under this Act are to be addressed to the nearest 
SBA office and be identified as a Freedom of Information request. 

Occupational Safety and Health Act (15 U.S.C. 651 et seq.) – The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) can require businesses to 
modify facilities and procedures to protect employees. Businesses that do not comply may be fined and required to abate the hazards in their workplaces. 
They may also be ordered to cease operations posing an imminent danger of death or serious injury until employees can be protected. Signing this form is 
certification that the applicant, to the best of its knowledge, is in compliance with the applicable OSHA requirements, and will remain in compliance during 
the life of the loan. 

Civil Rights (13 C.F.R. 112, 113, 117) – All businesses receiving SBA financial assistance must agree not to discriminate in any business practice, including 
employment practices and services to the public on the basis of categories cited in 13 C.F.R., Parts 112, 113, and 117 of SBA Regulations. All borrowers 
must display the "Equal Employment Opportunity Poster" prescribed by SBA. 

Equal Credit Opportunity Act (15 U.S.C. 1691) – Creditors are prohibited from discriminating against credit applicants on the basis of race, color, religion, 
national origin, sex, marital status or age (provided the applicant has the capacity to enter into a binding contract); because all or part of the applicant’s 
income derives from any public assistance program; or because the applicant has in good faith exercised any right under the Consumer Credit Protection 
Act. 

Debarment and Suspension Executive Order 12549 (2 C.F.R. Part 180 and Part 2700) – By submitting this loan application, you certify that neither 
the Applicant or any owner of the Applicant have within the past three years been: (a) debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in a transaction by any Federal Agency; (b) formally proposed for debarment, with a final determination still pending; (c) indicted, convicted, 
or had a civil judgment rendered against you for any of the offenses listed in the regulations or (d) delinquent on any amounts owed to the U.S. Government 
or its instrumentalities as of the date of execution of this certification.  
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PPP Borrower Demographic Information Form (Optional) 

Instructions 

1. Purpose. Veteran/gender/race/ethnicity data is collected for program reporting purposes only.
2. Description. This form requests information about each of the Borrower’s Principals. Add additional sheets if necessary.
3. Definition of Principal. The term “Principal” means:

• For a self-employed individual, independent contractor, or a sole proprietor, the self-employed individual, independent
contractor, or sole proprietor.

• For a partnership, all general partners and all limited partners owning 20% or more of the equity of the Borrower, or any
partner that is involved in the management of the Borrower’s business.

• For a corporation, all owners of 20% or more of the Borrower, and each officer and director.
• For a limited liability company, all members owning 20% or more of the Borrower, and each officer and director.
• Any individual hired by the Borrower to manage the day-to-day operations of the Borrower (“key employee”).
• Any trustor (if the Borrower is owned by a trust).
• For a nonprofit organization, the officers and directors of the Borrower.

4. Principal Name. Insert the full name of the Principal.
5. Position. Identify the Principal’s position; for example, self-employed individual; independent contractor; sole proprietor;

general partner; owner; officer; director; member; or key employee.

Principal Name Position 

Disclosure is voluntary and will have no bearing on the loan application decision 

Veteran 1=Non-Veteran; 2=Veteran; 3=Service-Disabled Veteran; 4=Spouse of Veteran; X=Not 
Disclosed 

Gender M=Male; F=Female; X=Not Disclosed 
Race (more than 1 
may be selected) 

1=American Indian or Alaska Native; 2=Asian; 3=Black or African-American; 4=Native 
Hawaiian or Pacific Islander; 5=White; X=Not Disclosed 

Ethnicity H=Hispanic or Latino; N=Not Hispanic or Latino; X=Not Disclosed 
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LOAN FORGIVENESS APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR BORROWERS 
 

To apply for forgiveness of your Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan, you (the Borrower) must complete this application as 
directed in these instructions, and submit it to your Lender (or the Lender that is servicing your loan).  Borrowers may also 
complete this application electronically through their Lender.   
 
This application has the following components: (1) the PPP Loan Forgiveness Calculation Form; (2) PPP Schedule A; (3) the PPP 
Schedule A Worksheet; and (4) the (optional) PPP Borrower Demographic Information Form.  All Borrowers must submit (1) and 
(2) to their Lender. 
 

Instructions for PPP Loan Forgiveness Calculation Form 
 

Business Legal Name (“Borrower”)/DBA or Tradename (if applicable)/Business TIN (EIN, SSN):  Enter the same 
information as on your Borrower Application Form. 
 
Business Address/Business Phone/Primary Contact/E-mail Address:  Enter the same information as on your Borrower 
Application Form, unless there has been a change in address or contact information. 
 
SBA PPP Loan Number:  Enter the loan number assigned by SBA at the time of loan approval.  Request this number from the 
Lender if necessary. 
 
Lender PPP Loan Number:  Enter the loan number assigned to the PPP loan by the Lender. 
 
PPP Loan Amount:  Enter the disbursed principal amount of the PPP loan (the total loan amount you received from the Lender). 
 
Employees at Time of Loan Application: Enter the total number of employees at the time of the Borrower’s PPP Loan 
Application. 
 
Employees at Time of Forgiveness Application: Enter the total number of employees at the time the Borrower is applying for 
loan forgiveness. 
 
PPP Loan Disbursement Date:  Enter the date that you received the PPP loan proceeds from the Lender.  If loan proceeds were 
received on more than one date, enter the first date on which you received PPP loan proceeds. 
 
EIDL Advance Amount:  If the Borrower received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) advance, enter the amount. 
 
EIDL Application Number:  If the Borrower applied for an EIDL, enter the Borrower’s EIDL Application Number. 
 
Payroll Schedule:  Select the box that corresponds to your payroll schedule.    
 
Covered Period:  Enter the eight-week (56-day) Covered Period of your PPP loan.  The first day of the Covered Period must be 
the same as the PPP Loan Disbursement Date.  For example, if the Borrower received its PPP loan proceeds on Monday, April 20, 
the first day of the Covered Period is April 20 and the last day of the Covered Period is Sunday, June 14. 
 
Alternative Payroll Covered Period:  For administrative convenience, Borrowers with a biweekly (or more frequent) payroll 
schedule may elect to calculate eligible payroll costs using the eight-week (56-day) period that begins on the first day of their first 
pay period following their PPP Loan Disbursement Date (the “Alternative Payroll Covered Period”).  For example, if the Borrower 
received its PPP loan proceeds on Monday, April 20, and the first day of its first pay period following its PPP loan disbursement is 
Sunday, April 26, the first day of the Alternative Payroll Covered Period is April 26 and the last day of the Alternative Payroll 
Covered Period is Saturday, June 20.  Borrowers who elect to use the Alternative Payroll Covered Period must apply the 
Alternative Payroll Covered Period wherever there is a reference in this application to “the Covered Period or the Alternative 
Payroll Covered Period.”  However, Borrowers must apply the Covered Period (not the Alternative Payroll Covered Period) 
wherever there is a reference in this application to “the Covered Period” only. 
 
If Borrower Received PPP Loans in Excess of $2 Million:  Check the box if the Borrower, together with its affiliates (to the 
extent required under SBA’s interim final rule on affiliates (85 FR 20817 (April 15, 2020)) and not waived under 15 U.S.C. 
636(a)(36)(D)(iv)), received PPP loans with an original principal amount in excess of $2 million. 
 
Forgiveness Amount Calculation (see Summary of Costs Eligible for Forgiveness below): 
 
Line 1:  Enter total eligible payroll costs incurred or paid during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period.  

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-04-15/pdf/2020-07673.pdf
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To calculate these costs, complete PPP Schedule A.  Enter the amount from PPP Schedule A, line 10. 
 
Line 2:  Enter the amount of business mortgage interest payments during the Covered Period for any business mortgage obligation 
on real or personal property incurred before February 15, 2020.  Do not include prepayments. 
 
Line 3:  Enter the amount of business rent or lease payments for real or personal property during the Covered Period, pursuant to 
lease agreements in force before February 15, 2020.   
 
Line 4:  Enter the amount of business utility payments during the Covered Period, for business utilities for which service began 
before February 15, 2020.   
 
NOTE:  For lines 2-4, you are not required to report payments that you do not want to include in the forgiveness amount. 
 
Line 5:  Enter the number from PPP Schedule A, line 3.  This amount reflects the loan forgiveness reduction required for 
salary/hourly wage reductions in excess of 25% for certain employees as described in PPP Schedule A. 
 
Line 6:  Add lines 1 through 4, subtract line 5, enter the total.  If this amount is less than zero, enter a zero.  
 
Line 7:  Enter the number from PPP Schedule A, line 13.   
 
Line 8:  Enter the amount on line 6 multiplied by the amount on line 7.  This calculation incorporates the loan forgiveness 
reduction required for any full-time equivalency (FTE) employee reductions as described in PPP Schedule A. 
 
Line 9:  Enter the PPP Loan Amount.   
 
Line 10:  Divide the amount on line 1 by 0.75, and enter the amount.  This determines whether at least 75% of the potential 
forgiveness amount was used for payroll costs.  For more information, see Interim Final Rule on Paycheck Protection Program 
posted on April 2, 2020 (85 FR 20811).   

 
Line 11:  Enter the smallest of lines 8, 9, or 10.  Note: If applicable, SBA will deduct EIDL Advance Amounts from the 
forgiveness amount remitted to the Lender. 
 
Summary of Costs Eligible for Forgiveness: 
 
Borrowers are eligible for loan forgiveness for the following costs: 
 

1. Eligible payroll costs.  Borrowers are generally eligible for forgiveness for the payroll costs paid and payroll costs incurred 
during the eight-week (56-day) Covered Period (or Alternative Payroll Covered Period) (“payroll costs”).  Payroll costs are 
considered paid on the day that paychecks are distributed or the Borrower originates an ACH credit transaction.  Payroll 
costs are considered incurred on the day that the employee’s pay is earned.  Payroll costs incurred but not paid during the 
Borrower’s last pay period of the Covered Period (or Alternative Payroll Covered Period) are eligible for forgiveness if paid 
on or before the next regular payroll date.  Otherwise, payroll costs must be paid during the Covered Period (or Alternative 
Payroll Covered Period).  For each individual employee, the total amount of cash compensation eligible for forgiveness may 
not exceed an annual salary of $100,000, as prorated for the covered period.  Count payroll costs that were both paid and 
incurred only once.  For information on what qualifies as payroll costs, see Interim Final Rule on Paycheck Protection 
Program posted on April 2, 2020 (85 FR 20811). 

 
2. Eligible nonpayroll costs.  Nonpayroll costs eligible for forgiveness consist of:  

(a) covered mortgage obligations: payments of interest (not including any prepayment or payment of principal) on any 
business mortgage obligation on real or personal property incurred before February 15, 2020 (“business mortgage 
interest payments”); 
(b) covered rent obligations: business rent or lease payments pursuant to lease agreements for real or personal property in 
force before February 15, 2020 (“business rent or lease payments”); and  
(c) covered utility payments: business payments for a service for the distribution of electricity, gas, water, 
transportation, telephone, or internet access for which service began before February 15, 2020 (“business utility 
payments”).   

An eligible nonpayroll cost must be paid during the Covered Period or incurred during the Covered Period and paid on or 
before the next regular billing date, even if the billing date is after the Covered Period.  Eligible nonpayroll costs cannot 
exceed 25% of the total forgiveness amount.  Count nonpayroll costs that were both paid and incurred only once. 
 

The amount of loan forgiveness the Borrower applies for may be subject to reductions as explained in PPP Schedule A.  

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-04-15/pdf/2020-07672.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-04-15/pdf/2020-07672.pdf


                                    
                                                 

 

    
 

 

      
  
       

              
   
   

     

    

  

   

     

          

 

  

 

 
    

       

       

        

   
 

  

    

 
      

         

      

 
    

Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

PPP Loan Forgiveness Calculation Form  

Business Legal Name (“Borrower”) 

Business Address 

DBA or Tradename, if applicable 

Business TIN (EIN, SSN) Business Phone 
( ) -

Primary Contact E-mail Address 

SBA  PPP  Loan Number:  ________________________ Lender  PPP  Loan Number: __________________________ 

PPP  Loan Amount:  _____________________________ PPP  Loan Disbursement Date:  _______________________ 

Employees at Time of Loan  Application:   ___________ 

Employees at  Time of  Forgiveness  Application: ___________ 

EIDL Advance Amount:  ________________________ EIDL Application Number: __________________________ 

Payroll Schedule:   The frequency with which payroll  is  paid  to employees is:  

☐  Weekly  ☐ Biweekly  (every other  week)  ☐   Twice a month  ☐ ☐ _____________    Monthly   Other  

Covered Period:   ________________________ to ________________________ 

Alternative Payroll Covered Period, if applicable:  ________________________ to _______________________ 

If Borrower (together with affiliates, if applicable)  received PPP  loans in excess of $2 million,  check  here:  ☐ 

Forgiveness  Amount  Calculation:  

Payroll and Nonpayroll Costs 
Line 1.  Payroll Costs (enter the amount from  PPP Schedule A,  line  10):  _____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

Line 2.  Business Mortgage Interest  Payments:  

Line 3.  Business Rent  or Lease Payments:  

Line 4.  Business Utility Payments:  

Adjustments for Full-Time Equivalency (FTE) and Salary/Hourly Wage Reductions 
Line 5.  Total Salary/Hourly  Wage Reduction (enter the amount from  PPP Schedule A, line  3):   

Line 6.  Add the amounts on  lines 1, 2, 3, and  4,  then  subtract the amount entered in line 5:  

Line 7.  FTE  Reduction Quotient (enter  the  number from  PPP Schedule A, line  13):  

Potential Forgiveness Amounts 
Line 8.  Modified  Total (multiply line  6 by line 7):   _____________________ 

_____________________ 

 _____________________ 

_____________________ 

Line 9.  PPP Loan Amount:  

Line 10.  Payroll Cost  75% Requirement  (divide  line 1  by 0.75):

Forgiveness Amount 
Line 11.  Forgiveness  Amount  (enter the smallest  of  lines  8, 9, and  10):  

SBA Form 3508 (05/20) 
Page 3 

Tara.Godbey
Highlight

Tara.Godbey
Highlight

Tara.Godbey
Highlight



 _____ 

                                    
                                                 

 

    
 

 

 
 

 
 

     
   

   
  

    
       

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
      

      
   

       
      

      
           

 
 

_____________________________________________________ ____________________________ 

_____________________________________________________ ____________________________ 

Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

By Signing Below, You Make the Following Representations and Certifications  on Behalf  of the Borrower:  

The authorized representative  of the Borrower  certifies to   all of the  below by  initialing  next to each one.  

The dollar amount for which forgiveness is requested: 
• was used to pay costs that are eligible for forgiveness (payroll costs to retain employees; business mortgage 

interest payments; business rent or lease payments; or business utility payments); 
• includes all applicable reductions due to decreases in the number of full-time equivalent employees and 

salary/hourly wage reductions; 
• does not include nonpayroll costs in excess of 25% of the amount requested; and 
• does not exceed eight weeks’ worth of 2019 compensation for any owner-employee or self-employed 

individual/general partner, capped at $15,385 per individual. 

_____ 

_____ 

_____ 

_____ 

_____ 

I understand that if the funds  were knowingly used for  unauthorized purposes, the federal  government may pursue recovery 
of loan amounts and/or civil or criminal fraud charges.  

The Borrower  has accurately  verified  the  payments for the eligible payroll and nonpayroll  costs for which the Borrower is  
requesting forgiveness.  

I have  submitted  to the Lender the required documentation verifying payroll  costs, the  existence of obligations  and  service  
(as applicable)  prior  to February 15, 2020,  and eligible  business mortgage  interest payments,  business  rent or lease 
payments, and  business  utility payments.   

The information provided in  this application and the  information  provided in all supporting documents  and forms  is  
true and correct  in all material respects.   I  understand  that knowingly making a false statement to obtain  forgiveness of  
an SBA-guaranteed loan  is punishable under  the law, including  18 USC 1001 and 3571 by imprisonment  of not more than 
five years and/or a  fine of up to $250,000; under  15 USC 645 by imprisonment of  not more than two years and/or a fine  
of not  more than $5,000; and,  if submitted to a Federally insured institution,  under 18 USC 1014 by imprisonment of not  
more than thirty years and/or  a fine of not more than  $1,000,000.  

The  tax documents I have  submitted to the  Lender  are  consistent  with those  the Borrower has  submitted/will submit 
to the IRS  and/or  state  tax or  workforce agency.  I also  understand, acknowledge,  and agree that the  Lender  can 
share  the tax information with SBA’s  authorized representatives, including authorized r epresentatives of  the  SBA 
Office  of Inspector  General,  for the purpose of  ensuring  compliance with  PPP requirements and all  SBA reviews.  

_____ I  understand, acknowledge,  and a gree that S BA may request a dditional information for the  purposes of evaluating  
the Borrower’s eligibility for  the  PPP loan and for loan forgiveness,  and that the  Borrower’s failure  to provide  
information requested by SBA may result in a  determination that the Borrower was ineligible for  the  PPP loan or  a  
denial  of the Borrower’s  loan forgiveness  application.  

The Borrower’s eligibility for loan forgiveness will be evaluated in accordance with the PPP regulations and guidance issued by 
SBA through the date of this application. SBA may direct a lender to disapprove the Borrower’s loan forgiveness application if 
SBA determines that the Borrower was ineligible for the PPP loan. 

Signature of Authorized Representative of Borrower Date  

Print Name Title  
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

Instructions for PPP  Schedule A  

Lines 1 through 5: Enter the amounts from PPP Schedule A Worksheet Tables as directed.  

Enter the amount from line 3 of PPP Schedule A on line 5 of the Loan Forgiveness Application Form. 

For lines 6 through 9, during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period: 

Line 6: Enter the total amount paid by the Borrower for employer contributions for employee health insurance, including 
employer contributions to a self-insured, employer-sponsored group health plan, but excluding any pre-tax or after tax 
contributions by employees. 

Line 7: Enter the total amount paid by the Borrower for employer contributions to employee retirement plans, excluding 
any pre-tax or after-tax contributions by employees. 

Line 8: Enter the total amount paid by the Borrower for employer state and local taxes assessed on employee compensation 
(e.g., state unemployment insurance tax); do not list any taxes withheld from employee earnings. 

Line 9: Enter any amounts paid to owners (owner-employees, a self-employed individual, or general partners).  This 
amount is capped at $15,385 (the eight-week equivalent of $100,000 per year) for each individual or the eight-week 
equivalent of their applicable compensation in 2019, whichever is lower.  See Interim Final Rule on Additional Eligibility 
Criteria and Requirements for Certain Pledges of Loans posted on April 14, 2020 for more information (85 FR 21747, 
21749).  

Line 10: Add lines 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, and 9.  Enter this amount on line 1 on the PPP Loan Forgiveness Calculation Form. 

Line 11: Enter the Borrower’s total average weekly full-time equivalency (FTE) during the chosen reference period.  For purposes 
of this calculation, the reference period is, at the Borrower’s election, either (i) February 15, 2019 to June 30, 2019; (ii) January 1, 
2020 to February 29, 2020; or (iii) in the case of seasonal employers, either of the preceding periods or a consecutive twelve-week 
period between May 1, 2019 and September 15, 2019.  For each employee, follow the same method that was used to calculate 
Average FTE on the PPP Schedule A Worksheet. Sum across all employees during the reference period and enter that total on this 
line. 

The calculations on lines 11, 12, and 13 will be used to determine whether the Borrower’s loan forgiveness amount must be reduced 
based on reductions in full-time equivalent employees, as required by the statute.  Specifically, the actual loan forgiveness amount that 
the Borrower will receive may be reduced if the Borrower’s average weekly FTE employees during the Covered Period (or the 
Alternative Payroll Covered Period) was less than during the Borrower’s chosen reference period.  The Borrower is exempt from such 
a reduction if the FTE Reduction Safe Harbor applies. See PPP Schedule A Worksheet—FTE Reduction Safe Harbor. 

Line 12: Add lines 2 and 5. 

Line 13:  Divide line 12 by line 11 (or enter 1.0 if the FTE Reduction Safe Harbor has been met, according to PPP Schedule A 
Worksheet—FTE Reduction Safe Harbor). If more than 1.0, enter 1.0.  Enter this amount on line 7 of the Loan Forgiveness 
Calculation Form. 
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

PPP Schedule A 

PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 1 Totals 

Line 1. Enter Cash Compensation (Box 1) from PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 1: ___________________ 

Line 2. Enter Average FTE (Box 2) from PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 1: ___________________ 

Line 3. Enter Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction (Box 3) from PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 1: ___________________ 
If the average annual salary or hourly wage for each employee listed on the PPP 
Schedule A Worksheet, Table 1 during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll 
Covered Period was at least 75% of such employee’s average annual salary or hourly 
wage between January 1, 2020 and March 31, 2020, check here ☐ and enter 0 on line 
3. 

PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 2 Totals 

Line 4. Enter Cash Compensation (Box 4) from PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 2: ___________________ 

Line 5. Enter Average FTE (Box 5) from PPP Schedule A Worksheet, Table 2: ___________________ 

Non-Cash Compensation Payroll Costs During the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period 

Line 6. Total amount paid by Borrower for employer contributions for employee health insurance: ___________________ 

Line 7. Total amount paid by Borrower for employer contributions to employee retirement plans: ___________________ 

Line 8. Total amount paid by Borrower for employer state and local taxes assessed on employee 
compensation: ___________________ 

Compensation to Owners 

Line 9. Total amount paid to owner-employees/self-employed individual/general partners: _____________________ 
This amount  may  not be included in PPP Schedule A  Worksheet,  Table  1 or 2.   If  there is  
more than one  individual included, attach a separate table  that lists the names  of and 
payments  to each.  

Total Payroll Costs 

Line 10. Payroll Costs (add lines 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, and 9): ___________________ 

Full-Time Equivalency (FTE) Reduction Calculation 
If you have not reduced the number of employees or the average paid hours of your employees between 
January 1, 2020 and the end of the Covered Period, check here ☐, skip lines 11 and 12 and enter 1.0 on line 13. 

Line 11. Average FTE during the Borrower’s chosen reference period: ___________________ 

Line 12. Total Average FTE (add lines 2 and 5): ___________________ 

Line 13. FTE Reduction Quotient (divide line 12 by line 11) or enter 1.0 if FTE Safe Harbor is met: ___________________ 
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

Instructions for  PPP Schedule A  Worksheet  

Complete the PPP Schedule A Worksheet or obtain an equivalent report from the Borrower’s payroll system or payroll processor. 

Table Instructions 

Employee’s Name: Separately list each employee. Do not include any independent contractors, owner-employees, self-employed 
individuals, or partners. 

Employee Identifier: Enter the last four digits of each employee’s Social Security Number. 

Cash Compensation: Enter the sum of gross salary, gross wages, gross tips, gross commissions, paid leave (vacation, family, 
medical or sick leave, not including leave covered by the Families First Coronavirus Response Act), and allowances for dismissal or 
separation paid or incurred during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period.  For each individual employee, the 
total amount of cash compensation eligible for forgiveness may not exceed an annual salary of $100,000, as prorated for the Covered 
Period; therefore, do not enter more than $15,385 in Table 1 or Table 2 for any individual employee. 

Average FTE: This calculates the average full-time equivalency (FTE) during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered 
Period.  For each employee, enter the average number of hours paid per week, divide by 40, and round the total to the nearest tenth. 
The maximum for each employee is capped at 1.0. A simplified method that assigns a 1.0 for employees who work 40 hours or more 
per week and 0.5 for employees who work fewer hours may be used at the election of the Borrower. 

This calculation will be used to determine whether the Borrower’s loan forgiveness amount must be reduced due to a statutory 
requirement concerning reductions in full-time equivalent employees. Borrowers are eligible for loan forgiveness for certain 
expenditures during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period. However, the actual loan forgiveness amount that 
the Borrower will receive may be less, depending on whether the Borrower’s average weekly number of FTE employees during the 
Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period was less than during the Borrower’s chosen reference period (see 
Instructions to PPP Schedule A, Line 11).  The Borrower is exempt from such a reduction if the FTE Reduction Safe Harbor applies. 
See the FTE Reduction Safe Harbor instructions below. 

Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction: This calculation will be used to determine whether the Borrower’s loan forgiveness amount must 
be reduced due to a statutory requirement concerning reductions in employee salary and wages. Borrowers are eligible for loan 
forgiveness for certain expenditures during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period.  However, the actual 
amount of loan forgiveness the Borrower will receive may be less, depending on whether the salary or hourly wages of certain 
employees during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period was less than during the period from January 1, 2020 
to March 31, 2020.  If the Borrower restored salary/hourly wage levels, the Borrower may be eligible for elimination of the 
Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction amount.  Borrowers must complete this worksheet to determine whether to reduce the amount of loan 
forgiveness for which they are eligible. Complete the Salary/Hour Wage Reduction column only for employees whose salaries or 
hourly wages were reduced by more than 25% during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period as compared to 
the period of January 1, 2020 through March 31, 2020. For each employee listed in Table 1, complete the following (using salary for 
salaried employees and hourly wage for hourly employees): 

Step 1. Determine if pay was reduced more than 25%. 
a. Enter average annual salary or hourly wage during Covered Period or Alternative Payroll Covered Period:  

______________. 
b. Enter average annual salary or hourly wage between January 1, 2020 and March 31, 2020: ______________. 
c. Divide the value entered in 1.a. by 1.b.: ______________. 

If 1.c. is 0.75 or more, enter zero in the column above box 3 for that employee; otherwise proceed to Step 2. 

Step 2. Determine if the Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction Safe Harbor is met. 
a. Enter the annual salary or hourly wage as of February 15, 2020: ______________. 
b. Enter the average annual salary or hourly wage between February 15, 2020 and April 26, 2020: 

______________. 
If 2.b. is equal to or greater than 2.a., skip to Step 3. Otherwise, proceed to 2.c. 

c. Enter the average annual salary or hourly wage as of June 30, 2020: ______________. 
If 2.c. is equal to or greater than 2.a., the Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction Safe Harbor has been met – enter 
zero in the column above box 3 for that employee. Otherwise proceed to Step 3. 

Step 3. Determine the Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction. 
a. Multiply the amount entered in 1.b. by 0.75:  ______________. 
b. Subtract the amount entered in 1.a. from 3.a.: ______________. 
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

c. Enter the average number of hours worked per week between January 1, 2020 and March 31, 2020:  
______________. 

d. Multiply the amount entered in 3.b. by the amount entered in 3.c. ______________. Multiply this amount by 
8: ______________. Enter this value in the column above box 3 for that employee. 

If the employee is a salaried worker, compute the total dollar amount of the reduction that exceeds 25% as follows: 
e. Multiply the amount entered in 3.b. by 8: ______________.  Divide this amount by 52: ______________. 

Enter this value in the column above box 3 for that employee. 

FTE Reduction Exceptions: Indicate the FTE of (1) any positions for which the Borrower made a good-faith, written offer to rehire 
an employee during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period which was rejected by the employee; and (2) any 
employees who during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period (a) were fired for cause, (b) voluntarily resigned, 
or (c) voluntarily requested and received a reduction of their hours. In all of these cases, include these FTEs on this line only if the 
position was not filled by a new employee. Any FTE reductions in these cases do not reduce the Borrower’s loan forgiveness. 

Boxes 1 through 5: Enter the sums of the amounts in each of the columns. 

FTE Reduction Safe Harbor 

A safe harbor under applicable law and regulation exempts certain borrowers from the loan forgiveness reduction based on FTE 
employee levels.  Specifically, the Borrower is exempt from the reduction in loan forgiveness based on FTE employees described above 
if both of the following conditions are met: (1) the Borrower reduced its FTE employee levels in the period beginning February 15, 
2020, and ending April 26, 2020; and (2) the Borrower then restored its FTE employee levels by not later than June 30, 2020 to its FTE 
employee levels in the Borrower’s pay period that included February 15, 2020. 
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

PPP Schedule A  Worksheet  

Table 1: List employees who: 
• Were employed by the Borrower at any point during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period whose 

principal place of residence is in the United States; and 
• Received compensation from the Borrower at an annualized rate of less than or equal to $100,000 for all pay periods in 

2019 or were not employed by the Borrower at any point in 2019. 

Employee's Name 
Employee 
Identifier Cash Compensation Average FTE 

Salary / Hourly Wage 
Reduction 

FTE Reduction Exceptions: 
Totals: Box 1 Box 2 Box 3 

Table 2: List employees who: 
• Were employed by the Borrower at any point during the Covered Period or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period whose 

principal place of residence is in the United States; and 
• Received compensation from the Borrower at an annualized rate of more than $100,000 for any pay period in 2019. 

Employee's Name 
Employee 
Identifier Cash Compensation Average FTE 

Totals: Box 4 Box 5 

Attach additional tables if additional rows are needed. 

FTE Reduction Safe Harbor: 

Step 1. Enter the borrower’s total average FTE between February 15, 2020 and April 26, 2020. Follow the same method that 
was used to calculate Average FTE in the PPP Schedule A Worksheet Tables. Sum across all employees and enter: 
______________. 

Step 2. Enter the borrower’s total FTE in the Borrower’s pay period inclusive of February 15, 2020.  Follow the same method 
that was used in step 1: ______________. 

Step 3. If the entry for step 2 is greater than step 1, proceed to step 4. Otherwise, the FTE Reduction Safe Harbor is not 
applicable and the Borrower must complete line 13 of PPP Schedule A by dividing line 12 by line 11 of that schedule. 

Step 4. Enter the borrower’s total FTE as of June 30, 2020: ______________. 

Step 5. If the entry for step 4 is greater than or equal to step 2, enter 1.0 on line 13 of PPP Schedule A; the FTE Reduction Safe 
Harbor has been satisfied. Otherwise, the FTE Reduction Safe Harbor does not apply and the Borrower must complete 
line 13 of PPP Schedule A by dividing line 12 by line 11 of that schedule. 
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

Documents that Each Borrower Must Submit with its  PPP Loan  Forgiveness Application  

PPP Loan Forgiveness Calculation Form 

PPP Schedule A 

Payroll: Documentation verifying the eligible cash compensation and non-cash benefit payments from the Covered Period or the 
Alternative Payroll Covered Period consisting of each of the following: 

a. Bank account statements or third-party payroll service provider reports documenting the amount of cash compensation paid 
to employees. 

b. Tax forms (or equivalent third-party payroll service provider reports) for the periods that overlap with the Covered Period 
or the Alternative Payroll Covered Period: 

i. Payroll tax filings reported, or that will be reported, to the IRS (typically, Form 941); and 
ii. State quarterly business and individual employee wage reporting and unemployment insurance tax filings reported, 

or that will be reported, to the relevant state. 
c. Payment receipts, cancelled checks, or account statements documenting the amount of any employer contributions to 

employee health insurance and retirement plans that the Borrower included in the forgiveness amount (PPP Schedule A, 
lines (6) and (7)). 

FTE: Documentation showing (at the election of the Borrower): 
a. the average number of FTE employees on payroll per month employed by the Borrower between February 15, 2019 and 

June 30, 2019; 
b. the average number of FTE employees on payroll per month employed by the Borrower between January 1, 2020 and 

February 29, 2020; or 
c. in the case of a seasonal employer, the average number of FTE employees on payroll per month employed by the Borrower 

between February 15, 2019 and June 30, 2019; between January 1, 2020 and February 29, 2020; or any consecutive twelve-
week period between May 1, 2019 and September 15, 2019. 

The selected time period must be the same time period selected for purposes of completing PPP Schedule A, line 11. Documents 
may include payroll tax filings reported, or that will be reported, to the IRS (typically, Form 941) and state quarterly business and 
individual employee wage reporting and unemployment insurance tax filings reported, or that will be reported, to the relevant state. 
Documents submitted may cover periods longer than the specific time period. 

Nonpayroll: Documentation verifying existence of the obligations/services prior to February 15, 2020 and eligible payments from 
the Covered Period. 

a. Business mortgage interest payments: Copy of lender amortization schedule and receipts or cancelled checks verifying 
eligible payments from the Covered Period; or lender account statements from February 2020 and the months of the Covered 
Period through one month after the end of the Covered Period verifying interest amounts and eligible payments. 

b. Business rent or lease payments: Copy of current lease agreement and receipts or cancelled checks verifying eligible 
payments from the Covered Period; or lessor account statements from February 2020 and from the Covered Period through 
one month after the end of the Covered Period verifying eligible payments. 

c. Business utility payments: Copy of invoices from February 2020 and those paid during the Covered Period and receipts, 
cancelled checks, or account statements verifying those eligible payments. 

Documents that Each Borrower Must Maintain but is Not Required to Submit 

PPP Schedule A Worksheet or its equivalent and the following: 
a. Documentation supporting the listing of each individual employee in PPP Schedule A Worksheet Table 1, including the 

“Salary/Hourly Wage Reduction” calculation, if necessary. 
b. Documentation supporting the listing of each individual employee in PPP Schedule A Worksheet Table 2; specifically, that 

each listed employee received during any single pay period in 2019 compensation at an annualized rate of more than 
$100,000. 

c. Documentation regarding any employee job offers and refusals, firings for cause, voluntary resignations, and written 
requests by any employee for reductions in work schedule. 

d. Documentation supporting the PPP Schedule A Worksheet “FTE Reduction Safe Harbor.” 

All records relating to the Borrower’s PPP loan, including documentation submitted with its PPP loan application, documentation 
supporting the Borrower’s certifications as to the necessity of the loan request and its eligibility for a PPP loan, documentation 
necessary to support the Borrower’s loan forgiveness application, and documentation demonstrating the Borrower’s material 
compliance with PPP requirements.  The Borrower must retain all such documentation in its files for six years after the date the loan 
is forgiven or repaid in full, and permit authorized representatives of SBA, including representatives of its Office of Inspector 
General, to access such files upon request. 
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Paycheck Protection Program OMB Control Number 3245-0407 
Loan Forgiveness Application Expiration Date: 10/31/2020 

PPP Borrower Demographic Information Form  (Optional) 

Instructions 

1. Purpose. Veteran/gender/race/ethnicity data is collected for program reporting purposes only. 
2. Description. This form requests information about each of the Borrower’s Principals.  Add additional sheets if necessary. 
3. Definition of Principal.  The term “Principal” means: 

• For a self-employed individual, independent contractor, or a sole proprietor, the self-employed individual, independent 
contractor, or sole proprietor. 

• For a partnership, all general partners and all limited partners owning 20% or more of the equity of the Borrower, or any 
partner that is involved in the management of the Borrower’s business.  

• For a corporation, all owners of 20% or more of the Borrower, and each officer and director. 
• For a limited liability company, all members owning 20% or more of the Borrower, and each officer and director. 
• Any individual hired by the Borrower to manage the day-to-day operations of the Borrower (“key employee”). 
• Any trustor (if the Borrower is owned by a trust). 
• For a nonprofit organization, the officers and directors of the Borrower. 

4. Principal Name.  Insert the full name of the Principal. 
5. Position. Identify the Principal’s position; for example, self-employed individual; independent contractor; sole proprietor; 

general partner; owner; officer; director; member; or key employee. 

Principal Name Position 

Veteran 1=Non-Veteran; 2=Veteran; 3=Service-Disabled Veteran; 4=Spouse of Veteran; X=Not 
Disclosed 

Gender M=Male; F=Female; X=Not Disclosed 
Race (more than 1 
may be selected) 

1=American Indian or Alaska Native; 2=Asian; 3=Black or African-American; 4=Native 
Hawaiian or Pacific Islander; 5=White; X=Not Disclosed 

Ethnicity H=Hispanic or Latino; N=Not Hispanic or Latino; X=Not Disclosed 

Disclosure is voluntary and will have no bearing on the loan forgiveness decision 

Paperwork Reduction Act – You are not required to respond to this collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control 
Number. The estimated time for completing this application, including gathering data needed, is 180 minutes.  Comments about this time or the 
information requested should be sent to Small Business Administration, Director, Records Management Division, 409 3rd St., SW, Washington DC 
20416, and/or SBA Desk Officer, Office of Management and Budget, New Executive Office Building, Washington DC 20503. 
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